
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Ruth Gladstone Tel: 01609 532555 
or e-mail ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk 

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of  Harrogate and Knaresborough 
Area Constituency Committee 

To: Councillors John Mann (Chair), Phillip Broadbank, 
Jim Clark, Richard Cooper, John Ennis, David Goode, 
Michael Harrison, Paul Haslam, Don Mackenzie, 
Zoe Metcalfe (Vice-Chair), Cliff Trotter, Geoff Webber 
and Robert Windass. 

Date: Thursday, 18th March, 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams 

 
Pursuant to The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, this meeting 

will be held using video conferencing with a live broadcast to the Council’s YouTube site.  
Further information on this is available on the committee pages on the Council website - 
https://democracy.northyorks.gov.uk/  
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings.  Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also 
available there. 
 

Business 
 
1.   Welcome by the Chairman, introductions and apologies for 

absence 
 

 

2.   Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 8 January 2021 
 

(Pages 5 - 20) 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4.   Update from The Rt Hon Andrew Jones MP 
 

 

5.   County Update by County Councillor Carl Les (Leader of the 
County Council) 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
https://democracy.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
OFFICIAL 

6.   Covid-19 Pandemic in North Yorkshire - Update  
 Verbal report by County Councillor Michael Harrison (Executive Member for Adult 

Services and Health Integration and Chair of North Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board) 
 

7.   Stronger Communities: COVID19 Social Isolation and Approach 
to Community Efforts 

(Pages 21 - 26) 

 Report of the Head of Stronger Communities 
 
Purpose of the report: To provide an update on the Stronger Communities Programme 
contribution to the COVID19 Social Isolation and Approach to Community Efforts work 
stream, including an overview of progress made in the Harrogate, Knaresborough and 
Boroughbridge area. 
 

8.   Public Questions or Statements  
 Anyone who would like to ask a question or make a statement at the meeting should 

email notice of their wish to do so, including the full text of what they intend to say, to 
Ruth.Gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk as soon as possible, and by midday on Monday 15 
March at the latest.  Speakers are each asked not to exceed 3 minutes’ speaking time 
and to read out only the statement/question of which they have submitted notice, without 
adding to or altering it.  No person may submit more than one question or statement.  No 
more than one question may be asked, or statement made, on behalf of one 
organisation.  The overall time available for public questions or statements is 30 minutes. 
 
If you are asking a question or making a statement at this meeting but do not wish to be 
recorded, please inform the Chairman who will instruct those taking a recording to cease 
whilst you speak. 
 

9.   Active Travel Schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough - 
Progress Report 

(Pages 27 - 30) 

 Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 
Purpose of the report:  To provide an update on progress on the Active Travel Fund 
schemes, Beech Grove Low Traffic Neighbourhood and Otley Road cycle scheme. 
 

10.   Forthcoming Public Consultation on Detailed Design for a Cycle 
Facility on Oatlands Drive, Harrogate 

 

 Verbal report by County Councillor Don Mackenzie (Executive Member for Access) 
 

11.   Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund Update (Pages 31 - 38) 
 Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 

 
Purpose of the report:  To provide an update on the Transforming Cities Fund proposals 
for Harrogate. 
 

12.   Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC (Pages 39 - 42) 
 Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 

 
Purpose of the report: To provide an update on the Harrogate York railway project, A59 
Kex Gill and Junction 47 major schemes. 
 

13.   Committee Work Programme (Pages 43 - 46) 
 Report of the Principal Democratic Services Officer 

 
Purpose of the report:  To ask Member to consider, amend and add to the Committee’s 
work programme. 
 

 

Page 2

mailto:Ruth.Gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk


 

 
OFFICIAL 

Barry Khan 
Assistance Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
Wednesday, 10 March 2021 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC – 

Minutes of 8 January 2021/1 
 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Harrogate and Knaresborough  
Area Constituency Committee 

 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Microsoft Teams on Friday 8 January 2021 at 9.30am 
 
This meeting was live broadcast on the North Yorkshire County Council YouTube site and a 
recording is available using the following link - https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings  
 
Present:- 
 
Members:- 
 
County Councillor John Mann (in the Chair); County Councillors Philip Broadbank, Jim Clark, 
Richard Cooper, John Ennis, David Goode, Michael Harrison, Don Mackenzie, Zoe Metcalfe, 
Cliff Trotter, Geoff Webber and Robert Windass 
 
In Attendance:- 
 
County Councillors Carl Les (Leader of the County Council), David Chance (Executive 
Member for Stronger Communities), Gareth Dadd (Executive Member for Finance and Assets 
and Special Projects) and Caroline Dickinson (Executive Member for Public Health, 
Prevention and Supported Housing) 
 
County Council Officers:- Karl Battersby (Corporate Director – Business and Environmental 
Services), Gary Fielding (Corporate Director - Strategic Resources), Rebecca Gibson (Senior 
Transport Planning Officer - Projects, Highways and Transportation), Allan McVeigh (Head of 
Network Strategy, Highways and Transportation) and Ruth Gladstone (Principal Democratic 
Services Officer) 
 
5 members of the public 
 
Apology for Absence:- 
 
An apology for absence was received from County Councillor Paul Haslam 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book 

 

 
73. Minutes 
 

 Resolved – 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2020, having been printed and 
circulated, be taken as read and be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 
 

74. Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings


 

 
Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC –  

Minutes of 8 January 2021/2 
OFFICIAL 

75. Update by County Councillor Carl Les (Leader of the County Council) 
 

 County Councillor Carl Les reported verbally concerning the work which the County 
Council was undertaking in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, including the new 
variant of the virus.  He highlighted:- concerns associated with the age of volunteers; 
general fatigue amongst volunteers and staff in councils and emergency services in 
responding to the pandemic; the impact of prolonged periods of social isolation; and 
the need for the Council, during the pandemic, to continue to provide other services, 
eg winter gritting, and to continue making service improvements eg Harrogate transport 
improvements.   

 
76. County Council Budget 2021/22 
 

Considered -  
 
Gary Fielding (Corporate Director - Strategic Resources) gave a presentation detailing 
the budget proposals for 2021/22 in respect of the overall County Council and on a 
Constituency area basis and invited Members’ comments.  A copy of the presentation 
slides has been published on the website alongside the documents for this meeting. 

 
 Members questioned Gary Fielding in respect of the following issues:- 
 

 Adult social care precept options. 

 The need to strike the correct balance between providing Services and not raising 
Council Tax more than necessary. 

 The suggestion of lobbying to ensure that the County Council was not penalised 
for its level of Reserves and good financial management. 

 Services available for residents who fell into financial difficulty, to help them retain 
their independence and receive help with welfare. 

 The reasons why the cost of providing Domiciliary Care in the Harrogate and 
Knaresborough Constituency was higher than in other constituency areas in the 
county. 

 
Resolved – 
 
(a) That the presentation, and Members’ comments thereon, be noted. 
 
(b) That Members’ comments be forwarded, for consideration, to the Executive 

Member for Finance and Assets and Special Projects. 
 

77. Public Questions or Statements 
 

The Chairman advised that six notices had been received from members of the public 
of questions or statements for this meeting.  All six notices related to the update on the 
Harrogate Transport Improvement Programme which was the next item of business on 
the agenda.  Therefore all six public questions or statements would be put to the 
meeting during the Committee’s consideration of the update on Harrogate Transport 
Improvement Programme. 
 

78. Update on Harrogate Transport Improvement Programme 
 
 Considered - 
 
 The report of the Corporate Director - Business and Environmental Services which 

updated the Committee on the outcomes of the Harrogate Transport Improvement 
Programme (HTIP) study and advised of recommended next steps in the HTIP 
development work streams. 

 

Page 6



 

 
Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC –  

Minutes of 8 January 2021/3 
OFFICIAL 

 The Chairman welcomed the following officers to the meeting:- Karl Battersby 
(Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services); Allan McVeigh (Head of 
Network Strategy, Highways and Transportation); and Rebecca Gibson (Senior 
Transport Planning Officer - Projects, Highways and Transportation). 

 
Karl Battersby introduced the report.  (On the recording of the meeting available at 
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings  Karl Battersby’s introduction of the report 
commences at 1 hour 9 minutes from the start of the meeting.) 
 
The Chairman invited members of the public who had given relevant notice, to address 
the meeting.  They each used the opportunity to express the views of their respective 
organisations concerning the HTIP.  Their contributions are set out in full in the 
Appendix to these Minutes.  They were:- 
 

 Councillor Phil Ireland of Harrogate Borough Council 

 Councillor Howard West of Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish Council 

 David Siddans of Harlow and Pannal Ash Residents’ Association 

 Kevin Douglas of Harrogate and District Cycle Action 

 Rebecca Maunder of Harrogate and District Green Party – Her statement was 
read out on her behalf by Ruth Gladstone (Principal Democratic Services 
Officer) 

 Rod Beardshall of Zero Carbon Harrogate Transport Working Group 
 
Allan McVeigh (Head of Network Strategy, Highways and Transportation) responded 
to each and County Councillor Don Mackenzie expressed comments as the Executive 
Member for Access.  These responses and comments are also set out in the Appendix 
to these Minutes. 
 
Committee Members discussed the report, asked questions and expressed opinions.  
Members’ opinions are set out below:- 
 

 County Councillor David Goode expressed concerns about the report on the 
grounds that:- 

 It lacked detail. 

 It did not identify “quick wins”. 

 It appeared to focus on speeding traffic rather than reducing traffic volumes 
and significant behavioural changes. 

 It lacked recommendations relating specifically to Knaresborough.  In 
particular:- 

 There were no recommendations to improve traffic volumes in 
Knaresborough, especially on the A59, and associated air pollution. 

 There was no recommendation for a Park & Ride to the east of 
Knaresborough on the A59. 

 There had been no reaction to Knaresborough Town Council’s 
suggestions with a view to introducing more cycle lanes in 
Knaresborough. 

 

 County Councillor Geoff Webber highlighted that he and Bilton residents would 
wish to know, as early as possible, the roads which were being considered for 
closure as part of a possible Low Traffic Neighbourhood. 

 

 County Councillor Geoff Webber expressed the view that having only one P&R 
site would be incorrect.  He suggested that more than one site would be required 
as otherwise the majority of Harrogate residents would be detrimentally impacted 
by the measures necessary to get P&R to work eg fewer parking spaces in the 
town centre and higher parking charges, whilst only those who could access the 

Page 7

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings


 

 
Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC –  

Minutes of 8 January 2021/4 
OFFICIAL 

one P&R site would benefit from the facility.  He felt a discount on parking should 
be available to Harrogate residents. 

 

 County Councillor Geoff Webber suggested that an Environmental Impact 
Assessment needed to be carried out, in particular to assess the impact which 
having fewer parking spaces in the town centre, and higher parking charges, would 
have on people with disabilities, people in rural areas who came into town, and 
people on low incomes. 

 

 County Councillor Michael Harrison (local Member) expressed support for 
including Killinghall bypass on the Council’s major schemes portfolio on the 
grounds that the business case for a stand-alone Killinghall bypass had been 
shown to stack-up.  County Councillor Michael Harrison also referred to comments 
made by some members of the public and highlighted that Killinghall was different 
to the western arc of Harrogate because there was a protected route for a Killinghall 
bypass which had been on plans since 1990.  He added that Killinghall had more 
than doubled in size and that most of its traffic was through traffic. 

 

 Some Members expressed the view that traffic congestion was not cured by 
building more roads.  The following issues were also highlighted:- the importance 
of reducing carbon; the Council’s previous approval of a carbon reduction 
programme; and that it needed to be made clear to the public that sustainable 
transport, and its implications, would necessitate difficult/uncomfortable decisions. 

 

 Various Members expressed support for considering the creation of Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods (LTNs).  Members highlighted, however, that LTNs could be very 
divisive and there needed to be maximum transparency in taking this work forward. 

 

 A statement was read out on behalf of County Councillor Paul Haslam who had 
submitted apologies for the meeting.  This included a request for a train station at 
Claro Road and a request for faster progress to be made in reducing traffic 
congestion in Harrogate and Knaresborough. 

 
 Resolved - 
 
 That Members’ comments be noted and be forwarded to the Executive Member for 

Access. 
 
79. Committee Work Programme 
 
 Considered - 
 
 The report of the Principal Democratic Services Officer which invited Members to 

consider, amend and add to the Committee’s work programme. 
 

Ruth Gladstone (Principal Democratic Services Officer) introduced the report, 
highlighting that, subject to parliamentary business, the Rt Hon Andrew Jones MP 
would be attending the Committee’s next meeting which was scheduled to be held on 
the morning of Thursday 18 March 2021 by Microsoft Teams. 
 
Members were invited to contact the Chairman or the Principal Democratic Services 
with suggested business for future meetings. 
 
 Resolved –  
 
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 

The meeting concluded at 12.35pm.       RAG/JR 

Page 8



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Public Questions and Statements, the Officer Reply, the Comments of County 
Councillor Don Mackenzie (Executive Member for Access) and the Supplemental 
Questions 
 
Members of the Public put the following Questions and Statements to the meeting:- 
 
(a) Councillor Phil Ireland (Harrogate Borough Council) made the following 

statement:- 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to speak chair.   

We welcome the further work that has taken place and can confirm that Harrogate Borough 
Council officers have seen the background reports and understand the conclusions reached.  
The work is starting to come together to create a good package of measures and the 
corridor based approach represents a positive way forward to tackling congestion on the key 
routes across the area.  There are, however, some areas where we feel further work is 
required to address the fundamental issues at play across Harrogate and Knaresborough.  
These are; 

1. Wetherby Road/Skipton Road.  The proposed measures provide low levels of 
intervention on Wetherby Road (Woodlands junction excepted).  This is the busiest 
corridor in the Harrogate urban area as per data from the study work and HBC 
considers there to be further opportunities for sustainable transport on this route.  We 
would be keen to discuss NYCC views on Empress Roundabout at the earliest 
possible opportunity as there are significant Stray Land implications that may render 
a major overhaul undeliverable. 
 

2. Improved opportunities for aligning with development proposals.  Officers from both 
councils are currently working together and with developers to deliver sustainable 
transport focussed development to the west of Harrogate and in other locations 
across the district.  We are keen to collaborate to ensure congestion reduction and 
development management projects come together coherently.  Improving the 
linkages of the HTIP work with development will only help a major scheme business 
case. 
 

3. The Killinghall Bypass.  Whilst the business case work is understood and that there 
may be a high level of value for money associated with the project this piece of work 
should not necessarily form a standalone scheme.  A Killinghall bypass is likely to 
expedite the flow of traffic towards Harrogate and therefore impacts at New Park 
roundabout and on the Ripon Road and Skipton Road corridors will need to form part 
of the Killinghall bypass project, therefore integrating with the HTIP scheme.  If the 
Killinghall bypass proposal does not include comprehensive complementary 
sustainable transport infrastructure, including cycling links between Killinghall and 
Harrogate and consideration of the Nidderdale Greenway and measures to address 
likely increased flows on Ripon Road then it would be very difficult for HBC to support 
the project.     
 

4. Ambition.  There is an excellent opportunity to deliver to the Department for 
Transport a comprehensive sustainable transport package which could provide an 
exemplar blueprint for medium sized towns across the country.  I would be interested 
to see what officers and WSP consider a more gold plated aspirational package to 
look like, perhaps incorporating ideas such as our future mobility proposal around 
electric shared vehicles, a wider network of cycle routes, including the Bilton to 
Starbeck route and further low carbon transport enhancements.  This could be 
delivered through the proposed business case work.   

Page 9



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

I would like to finish by thanking those involved for their work on the project and agree, that 
with additional considerations incorporating the points above, the project should be 
progressed to major scheme business case development stage.       

(b) Cllr Howard West, Chairman of Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish Council made 
the following statement:- 

 
Yet again, we feel the need to express our disappointment at the way congestion problems 
on Harrogate’s Western Arc have been neglected.  Because of the politicisation of the 
manner in which NYCC went about its investigation, there was only going to be one 
response – nothing for the Western Arc. 
  
The consultants should have been asked to investigate how congestion could be improved 
from the current (pre-Covid) daily congestion plus the effects of up to 4000 new houses. 
However, it’s patently obvious, by use of continued misnomers like bypass and relief road, 
promulgated by some, their brief was along the lines of, “What is the benefit/cost ratio for a 
link road between the A61 and Otley Road (or even further)?”  That was doomed to failure, 
so the nett result is that there’s nothing proposed other than tinkering in an attempt just to 
cater for individual construction sites on the Western Arc. 
  
Despite denials, the Congestion Study was very limited in its scope to primarily the northern 
relief road which became a fight against destruction of the Nidd Gorge.  It was only after 
campaigning from those of us on the western side of Harrogate that as an afterthought, an 
investigation was launched into congestion between the A61 and Otley Road.  This was now 
against the background of a significant campaign from hard-line protesters, whose opinions 
on the Nidd Gorge were interpreted as a universal dislike of any form of road-building.  The 
statistics from the narrow-scoped Congestion Study were then used as ammunition to read 
across to deny a western bypass.  
  
No-one apart from a couple of county councillors had even asked for a relief road/bypass, so 
this was set up as a project which could not possibly gain favour, given the parameters 
against which it would be judged. 
  
What is left is the joint workings of HBC and NYCC to satisfy the requirements of the 
Parameters Plan which was instigated by HM Government’s Inspector for the local plan - 
who knew that nothing had been planned (with respect to highways) to cater for the 
explosion of housing numbers in the west of Harrogate.  The congestion issues are largely 
forgotten.  
  
After a Campaign for Sustainability had been launched, we received lamentable comments 
like, “Tell us what you want”.  It had been patently obvious that it is NYCC’s job to tell us 
what they could do to solve the congestion, given that a bypass wasn’t wanted by locals but 
instead, some radically improved access.  
  
When David Bowe attended our parish council meeting on 13th June 2019, it was made clear 
what was wanted.  A meeting was held between a senior officer from NYCC and 
representatives of Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish Council on 23rd January 2020 and it was 
also clear from that meeting what was wanted.  Discussion points then were agreed as 
confidential and still remain so.  One thing that can be stated however, is that at that meeting 
the idea of an access road was suggested but a western bypass was recognised as a non-
runner.  Why would anyone ask therefore, “What do you want?” having pressed ahead with 
an investigation into something that wasn’t wanted? 
  
We sympathise with Karl Battersby, having inherited a “hospital pass” but still emphasise 
that the Parameters Plan is only there to cater for the demands of considerable additional 

Page 10



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

housing to the west of Harrogate.  No-one has yet demonstrated how the road system might 
be configured and enhanced to deal with those demands plus the existing congestion.  Think 
again please NYCC Highways. 
  
(c) Mr David Siddans of Harlow and Pannal Ash Residents’ Association made the 

following statement:- 
 

We fully support the statement submitted by Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish Council to this 
committee. 
 
As we have stated before, we agree with the transport policies to achieve more sustainable 
travel behaviour, but are concerned about: 
 

1. How far this can be effective for the trips generated by the developments in the west 
of Harrogate, and 

2. The huge long-term uncertainties thrown up by the current pandemic and other 
behavioural changes arising from carbon reduction policies, such as the drive to 
electric vehicles.  

 
On the first point, we note that the conclusions of the recent congestion study, arising from 
the work on the Northern Relief Road, have little relevance to the situation here in the west 
which is all to do with locally generated traffic, not through traffic. 
 
On the second point, there is worrying evidence to suggest that attitudes to public transport 
have worsened considerably as a result of the pandemic and that this may have long-term 
consequences.  We know that, outside London, public transport usage has been in steady 
decline for decades.  The concern is therefore that persuading people out of their cars will be 
significantly more challenging in the future and that this will impact vehicle generation.  The 
switch to electric cars may have similar consequences. 
 
When it comes to transport planning, uncertainty is now greater than it has ever been in my 
experience and, as decision-makers, your job is becoming increasingly difficult.  I can find no 
reference to uncertainty in the congestion study reports and only one in the report in front of 
you today – in paragraph 4.4.  No transport assessment that I have ever seen refers to 
uncertainty, despite government advice to do so. 
 
The only certain thing is that, on the west side of Harrogate, we will see up to 4000 new 
dwellings in the next 15 years and that, unless effective measures are taken, there will be a 
further deterioration in the state of the roads and the quality of life for our communities.   
 
Please bear this in mind when you are considering the future programmes for the whole of 
Harrogate. 
  
(d) Kevin Douglas, Chair of Harrogate and District Cycle Action made the following 

statement:- 
 
Consultation and Engagement - Firstly I would like to express our disappointment that there 
has been no consultation and engagement with interested parties about the ongoing work 
related to the HTIP.  The Harrogate District Cycle Forum on which the Executive Member for 
Access and relevant Officers sit has had no engagement or update reports bought to that 
Forum despite this being an ideal vehicle to involve key local groups and draw upon local 
knowledge and expertise that would enhance the plan and help gain local support.  I am 
sure members of the committee would agree this is a key document in the development of a 
cycle network and should have involved the Cycle Forum. 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Our comments on the report relate to the cycling aspects of the plan. 
 
Government Guidance - Since the production of the Congestion Study (July 2019) and the 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan for Harrogate (July 2019) the Government has 
issued two important documents relating to Cycling.  These are the DfT ‘Gear Change’ 
document and the Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20.  These two documents provide 
guidance to local authorities on delivering high quality, cycle infrastructure and sets 
standards to achieve that.  However, there is no mention of either document in the report 
and I would ask Officers to confirm that the LCWIP has been updated to take account of 
these two documents. 
 
Priority Corridors - Whilst it is recognised that the 4 key cycling corridors are still relevant 
there has been little work undertaken to highlight the improvements needed to bring them up 
to suitable standard.  The acknowledgement of a need for segregated cycle facilities on 
these routes is welcome but the detailed designs do need to be agreed, adopted and then 
implemented. 
 
The HTIP needs to go a great deal further than these 4 corridors.  Even with the ‘primary 
routes’ identified it does not go far enough to give sustainable transport routes to the majority 
of new developments. 
 
Low Traffic Neighbourhood - The identification of Bilton as a ‘Low Traffic Neighbourhood’ is 
welcomed but shows little ambition in that other areas have not been identified.  The work on 
Bilton should be seen as a pilot for other areas in the District and a plan drawn up to 
implement and evaluate it.  Also other potential areas should be identified that could become 
LTN’s so that if opportunities arise these can be developed. 
 
Killinghall By Pass - The proposal to add the Killinghall By-Pass to a the Future capital 
programme list is at odds with the outcome of the Congestion study findings and comes 
before any plan or proposals for Sustainable Transport measures in the area have been 
agreed and implemented.  The lack of cycling facilities, particularly linking to the Harrogate 
Greenway, despite the number of Housing Developments highlights the need for a 
comprehensive cycling Improvement plan which would have shown proposed routes and 
sought developer funding. 
 
Outcomes and Next Steps - The report only touches upon broad outcomes but does not set 
out any recommendations (other than that relating to the Killinghall By pass) or timescales 
for the actions identified. 
 
With regard to Cycling there has been no Infrastructure development since 2014 and even 
those schemes that are funded are severely delayed and have not yet started and we feel it 
essential that target dates and resources are set out in order that any outcomes are 
achieved and not delayed. 
 
We would therefore recommend to the Committee that they ask that a Detailed Action Plan 
be developed from this report identifying the key actions, target dates and resource 
allocations in order that progress can be monitored. 
 
(e) On behalf of Rebecca Maunder, Coordinator, Harrogate & District Green Party, 

the following statement was read out:- 
 
1. The development of improved cycle lanes on roads in and around Harrogate 

are welcome.  However to be meaningful, improvements need to facilitate 
continuous cycle lanes rather than stop/start lanes which do little to make 
cycling safe throughout the journey.  To be effective, cycle lanes are needed 

Page 12



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

throughout the town and suburbs, including on all main routes into and out of 
the town- A61, A59, A661 and B6162. 

2. The proposals for a Park and Ride are welcome. 
3. The proposals for a Low Traffic Neighbourhood in Bilton is very welcome but 

the majority of the District could benefit from this and it could be extended 
much wider. 

4. Improved bus routes are welcome - there needs to be consultations with local 
people to find out what they need in their area - for example in Harlow there is 
a need for an evening bus service and also a service which takes visitors 
directly into the Harlow Carr Gardens car park. 

5. While small changes are all useful, they will have little impact unless there is a 
whole system approach to the local transport system.  This needs to give 
meaningful priority throughout to walking, cycling and public transport and 
include infrastructure and financial support and incentives (eg: more and better 
cycle lanes, more pedestrian crossings and wider walkways and 
pedestrianising large parts of the town centre).  Local people need to be 
consulted to find out what they need in their local areas to help them move 
away from using their cars. 

6. The proposal for a bypass at Killinghall  runs counter to evidence of the 
effectiveness of these measures; conflicts with the council’s carbon reduction 
aims, and is contrary to the public lack of support or desire for bypasses and 
the need and support (77% of the 2019 consultation) for improved cycling and 
walking infrastructure. 

 
(f) Mr Rod Beardshall, Chair of Zero Carbon Harrogate Transport Working Group 

read out the following statement:- 
 
I would like to make some observations on behalf of Zero Carbon Harrogate about the 
update on the Harrogate Transport Improvement Programme (HTIP).  Whilst the report 
arose from a consideration of local traffic congestion, I hope we can all agree that transport 
policy is a key lever in addressing issues of climate change, especially given that almost half 
the regions carbon emissions come from transport (49.4% in 2018, the latest figures 
available).  If you have not already done so, I advise you to study the report published on 9th 
December, 2020, by the Climate Change Committee (CCC) entitled "Local Authorities and 
the Sixth Carbon Budget".  The report concludes that around 33% of emissions can be 
influenced by local authority "place-shaping leadership".  We should do everything within our 
power to influence what we can. 

There is much to commend about the HTIP report, especially the emphasis on active travel 
and consideration of low traffic neighbourhoods.  I would like to congratulate the council for 
their achievements to date, securing funding through the Transforming Cities Fund and the 
roll out of superfast broadband which will influence working and therefore travel behaviours 
for the better.  We now need a significant acceleration of the rate at which considerations, 
discussions and reports translate into actions on the ground.   

The HTIP report talks about improvements at five key junctions.  These alone will inevitably 
lead to more traffic flowing, so I am very pleased to note that paragraph 5.22 emphasises 
the need to focus on reducing traffic volumes to ensure that junction improvements do not 
have unintended negative consequences. 

Unfortunately, these aims appear to have been ignored in the decision mentioned in 
paragraph 6.7 that a standalone Killinghall bypass be added to the county council’s existing 
major schemes development list.  Residents of Killinghall would understandably love to see 
less traffic on the A61 through the village, but a bypass would induce more traffic overall, 
encourage more development, destroy more countryside and could damage the Nidderdale 

Page 13



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Greenway.  Consider also that any increase in traffic in the Killinghall area will go 
somewhere, much of it into Harrogate.  This will make it much harder to meet the stated aim 
of traffic reduction at key junctions in town.  All non-road solutions to Killinghall traffic should 
be considered before a bypass: lower speed limits; vehicle weight limits; road narrowing; a 
safe cycle link from Killinghall to the Greenway.  We would support legislation requiring that 
non-residents pay for the right to drive through villages such as Killinghall, especially at peak 
times.  It would be a much more environmentally beneficial solution than a bypass.  It would 
also be flexible, unlike a bypass which would be permanent, even when rendered irrelevant 
by progress. 

The Department for Transport's Decarbonising Transport document of March 2020 
calculates that between 2018 and 2050, with current policies, car kilometers travelled will 
increase by more than 35% and car greenhouse gas emission will fall by 52%.  However, it 
is now generally accepted that we need to be much more ambitious.  This acceptance 
comes from a wide range of sources from the UN, to UK Business Secretary Alok Sharma, 
to the Climate Change Commission, which concluded that a 70% reduction in transport 
emissions is needed by 2035. 

We need a consistent coordinated approach to traffic management.  ZCH asks you to 
oppose a Killinghall bypass and to call for a district wide travel strategy to get to net zero, 
supporting disincentives to car travel and wider and more rapid uptake of active/public 
transport initiatives, as this is key to cutting emissions in the next 10 years.  

 
Mr Rod Beardshall, Chair of Zero Carbon Harrogate Transport Working Group asked 
the following supplementary question:- 
 
Do we have a ball-park budget of costs in financial terms and carbon emission terms of the 
bypass?  What area of tree cover in our district would be required to off-set those carbon 
emissions? 
 
Allan McVeigh responded, as follows, to the statement from Councillor Phil Ireland of 
Harrogate Borough Council 
 
Thank you Cllr Ireland for your comments on behalf of Harrogate Borough Council. 

The HTIP study sought to identify where the greatest opportunities lie from a multimodal 

perspective, on key corridors in the study area.    It is these recommended corridors, which 

are considered to have a greater opportunity for a variety of modes (bus, cycling and 

walking) to see improved facilities.  Cllr Ireland’s comments though are welcomed with 

regards to Wetherby Road and Empress Roundabout and we will look into them further, and 

consider how the A661 corridor could be brought forward as part of any major scheme bid 

development. 

Cllr Ireland’s comments in relation to development planning are also welcomed.  Our officers 

are working on a weekly basis with Harrogate Borough Council officers on this and related 

matters.  For example, it is the same officers and teams focused on solutions for the West of 

Harrogate who are also closely involved in HTIP, so the right connections exist internally, as 

well as with colleagues in Harrogate Borough Council.   

With regards to the Killinghall bypass, the Council recognises the important role that active 
travel and sustainable transport solutions will play as part of a low carbon future. At the 
same time, the council has a duty to consider all viable options, including measures to 
remove through traffic from Killinghall, a village which is growing very rapidly and whose 
residents, (and local elected member), are concerned about the effects of increasing traffic 

Page 14



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

flows on their daily lives, road safety and air quality.  The recommendation is that the 
potential scheme is added to the County Council’s reserve list of major schemes. 

In addition, it is worth highlighting that with the recently issued Local Transport Note (LTN) 
1/20, the Department for Transport would now expect any significant new road-based 
infrastructure to make provision of a high standard for pedestrians and cyclists.  

Cllr Ireland’s comments regarding ambition of approach are noted. Officers are keen to 
understand the projects referred to in more detail and will continue to work with HBC on what 
practical opportunities may exist to add value to HTIP.  More generally, we will start informal 
discussions on this with the DfT at the first appropriate opportunity.  

County Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, made the following 
comment in response to Councillor Phil Ireland of Harrogate Borough Council:- 

I have little to add to what Allan McVeigh has said on behalf of the County Council.  
Councillor Phil Ireland is a member of the HTIP Steering Group that I chair.  You know, 
already, the great priority we give to active travel schemes and you will know also, of course, 
why we are looking at including, certainly at this stage, consideration of a bypass for 
Killinghall.  Killinghall, as we have discussed, is the fastest growing village in the county.  
Harrogate Borough Council has decided that it is an area of rapid residential growth.  It is 
doubling in size and we have a duty to respond to the many residents and the local Member, 
County Councillor Michael Harrison, who feel that they want to take some of this traffic out of 
their village and that includes, of course, 44 tonne lorries that could not be replaced by a 
person walking or cycling.  That is why we firmly believe that further consideration of a 
bypass, to take this traffic out of Killinghall, is needed.  I note you have made the comment, 
as others have also, that all we are doing is speeding traffic on its way into Harrogate or to 
the New Park roundabout.  In fact, as you know, any stand-alone bypass for Killinghall would 
actually take traffic away from the New Park roundabout, further west on the A59.  Apart 
from the comments made by Allan McVeigh, I have nothing further to add but I do welcome 
Harrogate Borough Council’s support of most of the aspects of our recommendations. 

Supplementary Questions were asked by the following Members of the Public:- 

(a) Councillor Phil Ireland (Harrogate Borough Council) 

Clearly, I am all for reducing the flow of traffic through Killinghall as well as I am a regular 
user of that road and I appreciate, as a stand-alone project, that it has high value.  However, 
my thoughts are centralised on this question:-  How do you plan to integrate cycling links 
between Killinghall and Harrogate into the Killinghall bypass project to provide a more 
sustainable transport infrastructure?  Taking aside the flow of traffic, how do you plan on 
improving these cycling links? 

(b) Cllr Howard West (Chairman of Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish Council) 

Given that the daily vehicle flow through North Rigton has grown from 836 in November 
2011 to 1,931 in November 2020 (that’s a 130% increase) even in the middle of a pandemic; 
and in November 2020 some 5,400 vehicles a day went through Burn Bridge and some 
2,500 through Pannal.  Why has no provision been made to accommodate those numbers, 
let alone what will come from the 4,000 western arc houses when they are built?  Continued 
neglect from North Yorkshire County Council highways is, I am afraid, unacceptable.  One 
supplementary question is – where is the park and ride site proposed near the A61 in Pannal 
please?   

(c) Mr David Siddans (Harlow and Pannal Ash Residents’ Association) 
 
There appears to be an inconsistency between the approach to Killinghall and the rational 
behind Killinghall bypass and the proposals, or lack of them, in the west of Harrogate where 

Page 15



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

there is perhaps four times as many development proposals coming forward than there are 
in Killinghall.   
 
The second thing is that this report, on traffic modelling, we have always had serious 
reservations about the way traffic modelling and the way it deals with new developments 
particularly.  This report in front of you is advising you (paragraph 4.5) that the existing 
modelling and appraisal approaches are not fit for purpose.  So, given all the uncertainties, 
and the problems in the west, are you content to carry on with a package as it’s presented to 
you? 
  
(d) Kevin Douglas (Chair of Harrogate and District Cycle Action) 
 
Given the importance of the Government’s Local Transport Note 1/20, does the County 
Council plan to formally adopt that as policy and therefore ensure that future development 
and schemes and developers conform to those standards?   
 
Allan McVeigh responded to the supplementary questions as follows:- 
 
In relation to the cost, at the moment this is very much a high level estimate, but it is in 
excess of £20,000,000 at the moment.  But clearly there is much more work to be done, 
should it be considered to take that to further stages.   
 
Allan McVeigh responded, as follows, to the the questions and statements put to the 
meeting by Cllr Howard West, Mr David Siddans, Kevin Douglas, Rebecca Maunder 
and Mr Rod Beardshall:- 
 
(a) In response to Cllr Howard West (Chairman of Pannal and Burn Bridge Parish 

Council):- 

We thank Councillor West for his comments and respond as follows: 

As he notes, what is now the HTIP study did indeed start out as the Harrogate relief road 

review, then became the Harrogate Congestion Study and in its latest form is the HTIP 

study.  This reflects the shift in emphasis both for the county council, and also in transport 

planning nationally, on responses to congestion and transport problems and on the way in 

which bids for funding are developed. This is very much focussed on a wide-ranging options 

appraisal process ultimately leading to a number of possible options to be worked up to 

preferred option stage.  

Officers leading the HTIP were tasked with undertaking further development work on 

thematic areas, based on those that had been well-supported through the 2019 public and 

stakeholder engagement.   NYCC officers did meet with the Parish Council in January, and a 

discussion on the Parish Council’s key concerns took place.  All of the information provided 

by the Parish Council has been passed to the relevant teams within the Authority with it 

either being fed into the HTIP work, or that being undertaken as part of the Local Plan, in 

partnership with Harrogate Borough Council. That said, we will revisit the work undertaken, 

in particular on the junctions work stream, to ensure that all relevant consideration has been 

given to those areas of concern in the western area.  

In terms of the Parameters Plan and related Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which is in 

development between HBC, NYCC and the developers, this will identify the infrastructure 

required to mitigate the impacts of the allocations and the apportionment of the costs.  Of 

course, developers are not required to address existing issues on the highway network and 

Page 16



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

this is why the Council is working to ensure that other opportunities to deliver improvements 

are taken wherever they arise.  

(b) In response to David Siddans (Harlow and Pannal Ash Residents’ 

Association):- 

  

Thank you Mr Siddans for your comments.   
 
Many of the points made have been covered in the previous response to Councillor West. In 
addition, with regards to comments on the uncertainty of forecasting and planning, there is 
as yet, no definitive advice from the Department for Transport on how changing behaviour, 
as a result of the pandemic, should be accounted for in transport planning, and indeed what 
longer term impacts on commuting and working patterns are likely to be. Once that 
information becomes available, it will form part of the approach on transport planning and 
appraisal. Sensitivity testing and uncertainty planning does form part of our modelling and 
appraisal approach in line with DfT guidance and is applied at the appropriate stage in 
scheme development.  
 
It is recognised by NYCC and HBC that the highway requirements to accommodate the 

impacts of the development in the western area are significant.  Whilst developers are only 

required by planning policy to mitigate the impacts of their development, there are however 

clear opportunities in the present circumstances to explore ways to bolster the infrastructure 

delivered through the HTIP work and to ensure the requirements of both work streams are 

delivered cohesively.  As set out earlier, in light of the comments raised, officers working on 

both projects will review again the relevant HTIP work streams to ensure that all 

opportunities for intervention have been explored.  

(c) In Response to Kevin Douglas (Chair of Harrogate and District Cycle Action):- 
 
My thanks to Mr Douglas for his comments. 
 
The work undertaken on HTIP followed on from a very long period of extensive consultation 
and stakeholder engagement, and in the case of the cycling work stream, built on significant 
partnership working as part of the development of the local cycling infrastructure plan (LCIP). 
This review of the LCIP was a technical review intended to reassess existing priority 
schemes and their ongoing suitability for delivery.  
 
The LCIP and HTIP more broadly have been reviewed in light of Local Transport Note 1/20 
in order to ensure it took account of the most recent Government guidance.  Gear Change 
features in the policy section of the Walking Infrastructure Plan, (which forms part of the 
wider HTIP), and points clearly to the use of LTN1/20 in guiding the design and 
implementation of cycling and walking provision. All of the LCWIPs prepared by the county 
council look to deliver cycling and walking infrastructure in line with current government 
guidance and policy, and this a key theme of those documents. The LCWIPs have already 
allowed the County Council to attract funding for active mode investment, and will continue 
to guide the development of cycling and walking schemes in the county.  
 
On priority corridors, the technical reports set out more detail on the measures necessary to 
bring routes up to the suggested standard.  There is also a second stage of assessment in 
the LCIP review, which considers a further list of six potential corridors for development. Of 
these, four are considered to have potential.  
 
In terms of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods, outputs from the various thematic work streams in 
the HTIP have shown that Bilton displays several key characteristics (propensity for cycling, 

Page 17



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

support demonstrated in the public engagement, and two cycling routes identified as priority 
corridors through the LCIP) that could contribute to a successful LTN.  The HTIP did not set 
out to study LTNs, but having established Bilton as a possible location for further 
development, we will consider further suggestions for LTNs on a case-by-case basis and in-
line with any future, adopted policy approach on the matter.  It would also be essential to 
undertake public and stakeholder engagement as part of scheme development.  
 
Moreover regards to any of the work streams being discussed in HTIP, further public and 
stakeholder engagement will take place at an appropriate stage of scheme development, as 
a key part of bringing projects forward.  
 
Turning to development planning matters, when considering the impacts of planning 

applications, priority is given to more sustainable forms of transport, with pedestrians and 

cyclists given the highest priority, followed by public transport options and ultimately the car. 

This approach does however need to take a realistic account of prevailing car use and 

modelling outputs.  

Whilst active travel is desirable, in some cases the extent of modal shift required to reduce 

vehicle numbers in any meaningful sense, is significant and difficult to deliver practically.   

Dispersed origins and destinations leisure and work for example, can represent a particular 

challenge in seeking to provide effective provision for sustainable modes.  

With regards to the Killinghall bypass, please refer to my earlier comments.   

(d) In response to Rebecca Maunder (Coordinator, Harrogate & District Green 
Party):- 

 
We thank Ms Maunder for her comments, several of which have already been raised and 
answered above. With regard to continuous cycles lanes, that is very much what the 
LCWIPs aim to deliver and LTN 1/20 would be the expected standard for any new cycling 
infrastructure.  
 
Turning to Ms Maunder’s comment on pursuing a ‘whole system approach’ to transport, we 
would endorse this wholeheartedly and reiterate that is very much the recommendation of 
this report, through which we consider a corridor-wide approach.  The report recognises that 
piecemeal delivery is unlikely to achieve tangible benefits in the longer term. 
   
With regard to consultation and building on the comprehensive 2019 public engagement 
exercise, it is very much our intention to seek the views of local people and stakeholders as 
projects develop further.   Specific consultations related to bus routeing, again, would take 
place as part of project development. This is in the context that the majority of bus services 
within the district are operated commercially, and therefore any input that the county council 
may have is based on working in partnership with the bus operators, rather than being able 
to directly specify routes.  
 
(e) In response to Mr Rod Beardshall (Chair of Zero Carbon Harrogate Transport 

Working Group):- 
 
I would like to thank Mr Beardshall for his comments.   
 
Many of his points have been addressed above, but to summarise, the county council is 
required to consider all options for addressing through traffic in Killinghall.  The 
recommendation on Killinghall bypass is that the potential scheme is added to the County 
Council’s reserve list of major schemes for development. 
 

Page 18



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

We recognise that there has been a shift in focus at a national level on carbon reduction and 

a renewed emphasis on walking and cycling from the government, and we are now 

considering how best to embed this into our policies and projects at a countywide level. As is 

also noted, where funding is available, schemes such as the Transforming Cities Fund and 

superfast broadband aim to support ongoing changes to travel and commuting behaviour 

and offer viable alternatives to daily commuting by car. For assurance, the Council will 

continue to take every opportunity to bid for grant funding, which seeks to promote 

sustainable transport and encourage a low carbon future.   

In all cases, where any projects are taken forward for further development, public and 

stakeholder engagement would form a key part of project development and would be 

undertaken at the appropriate stage.  

County Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, commented as 
follows regarding the questions and statements from the members of the public:- 
 
I wish to reassure Councillor Phil Ireland that any proposal for a stand-alone bypass for 
Killinghall would be accompanied by facilities for active travel, in other words, a cycle path 
and path for walking.  That is something that we believe is essential to any decision to build 
a bypass.  Let us not forget, in Killinghall, its not just the A61 that is seeing increased levels 
of traffic but also the B6161 which is the Killinghall to Otley road on which there is a 
community centre, a primary school.  We have received, as elected Members, and the local 
Member will agree, huge numbers of communications from that school, from parents and 
others, asking us to take traffic away from the B6161 which, even now, is a weight restricted 
section of road, because of the sheer volume of traffic, not just the road safety aspect but the 
air quality aspects of having high levels of traffic in front of primary schools.    
 
I wish to comment briefly to Kevin Douglas.  As Kevin knows, I am a member of the cycle 
forum in Harrogate, Harrogate District Cycle Forum.  He and I have met also separately.  He 
asks why we have not asked specifically for the comments of the Cycle Forum in the way we 
have brought forward this report.  Well, there are so many parties we could be asking for 
comments from, such as the bus operators, the railway company, the taxi companies, the 
ramblers.  There is a long, long list of potential advisors whose opinions we could seek.  
Kevin, you are here today and this is part of the process and we welcome your comments.  
 
Briefly, to David Siddans – As both David and Howard West know, we have met together 
ourselves.  We met just before Christmas, alongside Karl Battersby, and we know full well 
your concerns that somehow we are missing out on doing anything for the western arc.  I 
have to say, I still remain puzzled as to exactly what you want us to do in order to improve 
the situation in the western arc.  I know, Howard, you say it’s not for you to suggest and that 
it’s for us to suggest and you can say “yes” or “no”.  But in fact we are genuinely puzzled 
because it sounds to us as if you are wanting a major road investment whilst, at the same 
time, saying that is not what you want.  Clearly, in the west of Harrogate, we are engaged 
upon a cycle path at Otley Road; we are engaged upon junction improvements; you have the 
36 bus service along the A61, the A61 which actually doesn’t pass through your village 
unlike in Killinghall.  The A61 bypasses your village.   There are aspects of the A61 corridor 
will look for bus priorities and will look for cycle lanes.  We are doing all of these things but, 
at this stage, and you know this, we are not looking at a western bypass or a western relief 
road or, for that matter, we are not looking for an access road as you called it earlier this 
morning.  At this stage, we are going to be relying upon active travel measures and other 
aspects of improving public transport in the west of Harrogate.  I know that is something you 
don’t like to hear us say but that is the situation we are in at the moment.  If you feel this is 
something we are getting wrong, then come back at us or work through your local elected 
Member and we may be able to take that further.   

Page 19



APPENDIX TO THE MINUTES 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Finally to Rod Beardshall – Rod, you know that you have met with Karl Battersby and me.  
We know your views on this matter.  I just remind you that, in addition to active travel which 
you totally support, and I know your group doesn’t really hold with any investment in 
highways at all, we, as elected Members, and as the County Council, have to take into 
consideration the thoughts of others who want to see us take effective measures to take 
transport to take traffic away from the centres of their communities and that is why we are 
looking further at a Killinghall bypass.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

 

OFFICIAL 

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
HARROGATE & KNARESBOROUGH AREA CONSTITUENCY COMMITTEE –  

18th March 2021 
 

Stronger Communities: COVID19 Social Isolation and Approach to Community Efforts 
 
 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 

 

To provide Members with an update on the Stronger Communities Programme 

contribution to the COVID19 Social Isolation and Approach to Community Efforts work 

stream, including an overview of progress made in the Harrogate, Knaresborough & 

Boroughbridge area.   

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 In March 2020, the Stronger Communities Team were tasked with developing and 

mobilising community support infrastructure in response to the COVID19 

(Coronavirus) pandemic.  With a national lockdown imminent and those classified as 

clinically extremely vulnerable being advised to shield, it was imperative that a ‘safety 

net’ of community based support and assistance was in place for people who did not 

have friends, family or neighbours to call upon.  

 

2.2 Working with 23 key trusted voluntary sector partners across the County and drawing 

upon the existing, sound working relationships in place, the community support 

infrastructure was mobilised in four days.  The 23 Community Support Organisations 

(CSOs) were requested to act as the single point of contact within a locality, and in 

conjunction with local networks, commenced coordination of a variety of volunteer led 

support services.  This included the collection and delivery of shopping and 

prescriptions, caring for pets, offering regular social contact by telephone, and acting 

as a local agent for the COVID-19 Self Isolation Grant.  The CSO also provided 

support to local networks and action groups (for example Mutual Aid Groups) that 

had come together to assist in their communities, providing information, advice and 

guidance to ensure that all activity was delivered as safely as possible for both the 

volunteer and the beneficiary.   

 

2.3 In addition to this, North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) extended opening hours 

to include weekends and public holidays to ensure that support was in place 7 days 

per week between 8.00am and 5.30pm.  This has been primarily delivered by the 

Customer Service Centre and Stronger Communities, in conjunction with Team North 

Yorkshire Volunteers and NHS Responder Volunteers where appropriate.    

 

2.4  Alongside intensive support from their local Delivery Manager, funding support was 

also made available for the CSOs; this will total approximately £950K over a 12-

month period.  Although the generic support offer is universally available across the 

County, the model of delivery varies dependent on local need and community assets 

available.  A number of CSOs have evolved their delivery model; either reconfiguring 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

 

OFFICIAL 

their services, or developing new ways of working in order to continue to provide 

support within the varying levels of restrictions. 

 

2.5 Despite the ever-changing landscape, community support infrastructure through the 

CSO network has remained in place throughout the last 12-month period, and will 

continue to be in place until at least September 2021.      

 

 

3.0 Community Support Organisation Performance (2020/21) 

 

3.1 Since the mobilisation of the community support model in March 2020, the following 

activity has been recorded via the 23 CSOs across North Yorkshire, primarily facilitated 

by approximately 95,000 volunteer hours: 

 

 Approximately 82,000 contacts; 

 17,214 prescriptions delivered; 

 24,724 shopping deliveries made; 

 32,559 befriending calls and 22,083 phone check ins made; 

 Administered and allocated 1,132 Covid19 Self Isolation Grants totalling 

£108,775; 

 4,402 transport requests fulfilled; and  

 31,876 meals delivered.  

 

3.2 There have been complementary services developed to support the CSOs and 

community support infrastructure; this was demonstrated when CSOs started to 

receive an increasing number of requests for transport to hospital and medical 

appointments in summer 2020; particularly for those who did not have support within 

their own household and who were not eligible for patient transport services.  A solution 

was developed in conjunction with Integrated Passenger Transport (IPT), utilising 

NYCC Fleet capacity should no other local option be viable.  This referral pathway 

remains in place, and has recently been broadened to support vaccination 

appointments (as outlined in Section 4.2). 

 

3.3  In addition to this, Stronger Communities have distributed £55,982 in Community 

Response Grants (March – September 2020), and £99,242 in Covid19 Community 

Grants (September 2020 onwards).  This investment has allowed communities and 

charities to respond to the needs of their communities during lockdowns and periods 

of heightened restrictions; examples of which have included support services to help 

people to self-isolate, have access to food and supplies, and stay connected to people 

through technology.  Over the summer period, grants were also used to support groups 

to re-open some services and activities where they were able to confidently operate in 

a Covid-safe and compliant way.  As Stronger Communities tentatively look towards 

recovery, the Programme will continue to offer small grants to help groups adapt 

existing and / or start new activities that help people regain confidence and 

independence in a safe and Covid compliant way. 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

4.0 Covid19 Related Work 

 
4.1 Defra’s Local Authority Emergency Assistance Fund for Food and Essential Supplies 

The Government made provision for an emergency fund of £63 million to be distributed 

to local authorities in England to help those who were facing financial hardship and as 

a result were struggling to afford food and other essentials due to COVID-19. The 

funding was a one-off contribution for the 2020-21 financial year, and was intended to 

help local authorities to continue to support those people and families facing hardship 

over the coming months due to COVID-19.  

 

The County Council was awarded £532,000 via the fund.  In September 2020, 

NYCC, in consultation with the seven district councils, allocated £177,000 via 24 grant 

awards to further support and expand the direct provision of food for those people and 

families experiencing financial hardship.  A second round of funding was made 

available in December 2020 for food banks and other food supply schemes (for 

example community kitchens and fridges, or meals on wheels) to support voluntary 

and community sector efforts over the winter months; a further 24 grants totalling 

£100,000 were awarded and distributed before Christmas.  

 

In addition, £105,000 has been awarded to Citizens Advice North Yorkshire 

(comprising Citizens Advice Mid North Yorkshire, Citizens Advice Craven & Harrogate 

Districts and Citizens Advice Scarborough & District) to expand their Money and 

Benefits Advice Service across the County.  This was in direct response to evidenced 

increased demand between April and July 2020, particularly from a new cohort of 

individuals who are presenting to services for the first time. The remaining funding has 

been used to extend the reach of the North Yorkshire Local Assistance Fund (NYLAF).  

 

This investment was to complement the £1.4million that was also awarded to NYCC 

via the Covid19 Winter Grant, to support families and children who have been affected 

by the pandemic, as well as existing resources in place through the NYLAF General 

Financial Hardship and the aforementioned Covid19 Self-Isolation grants.   

 
4.2  Support for the NHS Covid19 Vaccination Programme  

CSOs in Ryedale, Harrogate, Hambleton and Richmondshire were approached to 

support the NHS Covid19 Vaccination Programme. Volunteers have been offered in 

the short term while longer-term arrangements are discussed; in collaboration with 

Community First Yorkshire, information, advice and guidance has been offered to the 

voluntary and community sector to ensure that key areas of consideration such as 

insurance were explored.  Strategic conversations continue to take place at North 

Yorkshire and York Local Resilience Forum (NYLRF) level to establish the support 

requirements, and the LRF continue to review options to ensure that this can be 

maintained in the longer term.  

 

Since the inception of the NHS Covid19 Vaccination Programme, there has been an 

 increased level of requests for transport to vaccination appointments.  In order to 

 support this logistical work area, NYCC has broadened the access/transport to 

Page 23



 

 

OFFICIAL 

medical appointments referral pathway to include vaccination appointments, with the 

key triaging point being in locally based CSOs.  Should there be no locally based 

solution available; CSOs can request support from NYCC Integrated Passenger 

Transport (IPT) should capacity permit.  Details of the CSOs have been circulated via 

the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Primary Care Networks (PCNs) so 

GPs are aware of the support that is available in relation to vaccination transport.    

 

4.3 North Yorkshire Together Activity Packs 
Approximately 3,500 North Yorkshire Together Activity Packs have been distributed 

through Stronger Communities, CSOs, and partners to families and adults across the 

County over the three phases of the project in 2020/21.  The packs contained a range 

of equipment to encourage people to remain active and increase mobility, alongside a 

range of resources aimed at increasing wellbeing.    

 
4.4 Capacity Building 
 In parallel to COVID-19 community response work, the Stronger Communities 

 Programme has continued to strengthen local community assets and infrastructure; 

 this has included continuing to encourage relationships and collaborations between 

 voluntary and community sector organisations as well as stabilising, and / or building 

 capacity within them if required.  Since March 2020, the Programme has provided 

 specialist support to assist 10 VCSEs with work areas such as restructuring their 

 organisations, re-modelling their services and providing additional capacity for 

 fundraising; all of which have been crucial in trying to ensure their future sustainability, 

 in one of the most challenging times for the sector in recent years.   

 

 
5.0 Planning for 2021/22 

 
5.1 Independent Evaluation 

 The Stronger Communities Programme is subject to a 5-year independent 

evaluation, conducted by Skyblue Research. Evaluation of the CSOs has now been 

encompassed within this, alongside continuing to develop our ten-year strategy, 

People, Place and Power.  Discussions on a strand of this Strategy, building on 

existing infrastructure and the creation of ‘Community Anchor Organisations’ in 

localities have been accelerated by the needs presented by Covid19 and the 

mobilisation of the CSOs; the third phase of evaluation with CSOs is taking place in 

March 2021, in conjunction with colleagues in NYCC Health & Adult Services Service 

Development team.  

 
5.2 Holiday Activities and Food Programme 

Stronger Communities are working with colleagues in Children and Young Peoples 

Service (CYPS) and voluntary sector partners to support the delivery of the Holiday 

Activities and Food Programme (funded from Department for Education grant).  

Acknowledging that holidays can be a pressure point for families due to increased cost, 

and that some children will experience ‘unhealthy holidays’ both nutritionally and 

physically, a programme to deliver nourishing food, nutritional advice and a range of 

enriching activities is being developed for Easter, Summer and Christmas school 

holidays. The programme – FEAST (Food, Entertainment, Arts & Sports Together)  - 

Page 24



 

 

OFFICIAL 

is being delivered in partnership with a communities and voluntary sector groups and 

is to be coordinated by a consortia of North Yorkshire Youth, North Yorkshire Sport 

and Rural Arts working as North Yorkshire Together. This not only ensures that a 

breadth of provision can be made across the county, but it also enables the funding to 

be invested directly into communities and local assets. Due to restrictions the Easter 

programme will be delivered remotely providing vouchers, a range of digital resources, 

and distribution of age appropriate holiday activity packs. Summer provision will - it is 

hoped – be delivered face to face across the county and North Yorkshire Together 

partners will work with local groups and clubs to build their capacity, and develop new 

groups, if required, to meet gaps in activity provision.  

 

5.3 Reboot North Yorkshire 

Working with colleagues in Technology and Change, Stronger Communities have 

been supporting the development of Reboot North Yorkshire. The movement is 

bringing together a wide range of partners and community organisations across the 

County, including businesses, libraries, schools, local charities and volunteers – to 

help provide people across North Yorkshire with IT equipment and access to the 

internet so they can stay connected. 

 

 Initially prioritising children and young people who need access to digital resources to 

 support remote learning, it is anticipated that Reboot North Yorkshire will also seek to 

 support older and vulnerable people to get online to tackle social isolation and 

 improve their mental health and wellbeing in further phases.    

 
 
6.0 Local Area Information 

 
Key areas of note; achievements, challenges, areas of focus in 21/22. 
 
As the designated Community Support Organisation for the Knaresborough area, 
Knaresborough Connectors collaborated with The Rotary Club of Knaresborough, 
Knaresborough Lions Club and faith groups to provide a network of local volunteers; each 
volunteer took responsibility for a particular road and made contact with households to offer 
support.  
 
Harrogate District Community Action have had over 200 new volunteers come forward to 
help them fulfil their role as Community Support Organisation for the Harrogate area. These 
volunteers have completed over 1600 individual shopping trips alongside other support such 
as prescription collection and dog walking. 
 
Boroughbridge Community Care identified that many of their previous lunch club members 
were missing the weekly hot meal. Alongside the core support offered by them as a 
Community Support Organisation, they have been able to set up a weekly meal delivery 
service; the reasonably priced meals are prepared by a local catering business and 
delivered by volunteers. 
  
Between them, the Community Support Organisations have been in contact with over sixty 
village and neighbourhood groups across the Harrogate, Knaresborough and Boroughbridge 
areas, ensuring that this critical, grass roots, community network is kept up to date and able 
to seek support and guidance for themselves and those they are helping.  

Page 25



 

 

OFFICIAL 

In collaboration with the other Community Support Organisations within the Harrogate 

District, volunteers are being provided for vaccination sites throughout the week as needed.  

Many local Community and Voluntary organisations have needed to adapt their normal 
programmes of activity during the pandemic – for example, Supporting Older People (a 
Harrogate based charity) have been offering telephone befriending, food parcels and a hot 
meal delivery service instead of their normal home visiting and activity groups. 
 
Harrogate & Knaresborough Foodbank, Boroughbridge Community Care and Resurrected 

Bites are amongst the organisations who have ensured emergency food parcels are 

available for those that need food support living in Harrogate, Knaresborough and 

Boroughbridge. Shared communications explaining the offer and ‘donation needs’ of each 

group have been produced and circulated within local areas and to partner agencies to help 

people contact the most appropriate group to offer supplies or seek support.  

The general desire for people to help their local communities during Covid 19 has led to a 

substantial increase in volunteers coming forward. The focus for 21/22 is to make the best of 

these volunteers and encourage their long-term, sustained engagement in volunteering. 

Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Members note the content of this report. 

 
 
Marie-Ann Jackson 
Head of Stronger Communities 
North Yorkshire County Council  
18th March 2021 

 

Page 26



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 - Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Progress report on active travel schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough/1 

OFFICIAL 

 
North Yorkshire County Council 
 
 
 
 

Harrogate and Knaresborough Constituency Committee – 18 March 2021 
Progress report on active travel schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough 

 
1.0 
 
1.1 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide an update on progress on the Active Travel Fund schemes, Beech Grove 
Low Traffic Neighbourhood and Otley Road cycle scheme 
 

 
2.0 Update 
 
2.1 There are a number of active travel schemes in progress in Harrogate and 

Knaresborough. These schemes are funded from different sources and are at varying 
stages of development and delivery.  

 
3.0 Active Travel Fund Schemes 
 
3.1 NYCC was invited to bid for emergency grant funding (the Active Travel Fund or 

ATF) to support NYCC, as the local Highway Authority, with the delivery of 
walking/cycling infrastructure to encourage active travel. The money was to be 
spread over two tranches:  
 tranche 1 supports the installation of temporary projects for the COVID-19 

pandemic In tranche 1 the total indicative allocation to NYCC was £266,000 but 
only 50% funding was awarded following the DfT assessment of our Tranche 1 
bid. The split of tranche 1 funding is £4,143 capital and £128,857 revenue. 
Match funding of £133,000 by the County Council was agreed to be funded 
through the Highways revenue budget. As a result, schemes were rolled out 
across the county these included suspension of car parking, segregation for 
cyclists/pedestrians and some road closures. The full list of schemes is 
included at Appendix A. It should be noted that these measures were intended 
to be temporary, as such, some have been removed. tranche 2 supports the 
creation of permanent projects 

 
3.2 In total, we assessed over three hundred potential schemes to put forward as part of 

our bid for tranche 2 in August 2020. The criteria of the funding was particularly 
stringent and with a relatively small amount of funding available only a handful of 
schemes were deemed suitable for this round of funding. Three of the five schemes 
included in the bid were in Harrogate and Knaresborough. They are:  
 Oatlands Drive, Harrogate: segregated cycle lanes along an existing cycle 

route, improved crossing facilities at four locations and other improvements; 
 A59, Maple Close, Harrogate to Knaresborough: segregated cycle lanes along 

an existing cycle route and improved crossing facilities at either end; 
 Victoria Avenue, Harrogate, Princes Square to Station Parade: pedestrian 

crossing improvements, segregated cycling infrastructure and bike storage 
facilities; 

 
3.3 The Department for Transport notified us in mid-November that we had been 

successful in bidding for funding for the schemes put forward in the summer and 
would receive £1,011,750.  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 - Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Progress report on active travel schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough/2 

OFFICIAL 

3.4 As part of the grant conditions an extended period of consultation for all schemes 
was to be carried out. NYCC has committed to two rounds of consultation with the 
first taking place from 9th – 23rd February. The first round of consultation focussed on 
the corridors for the routes rather than detailed design. The feedback from the first 
round of consultation will be collated to inform more detailed consultation plans. The 
second round of consultation is planned to take place in late March.  

 
3.5 On completion of the second round of consultation a report will be produced for BES 

Executive to agree which schemes will be taken forward for delivery in 2021/22.  
 
3.6 At the time of writing this report the responses to the first round of consultation are 

being collated. Initial outcomes from the online survey show that 2298 people 
completed the form and 44% strongly support or support the Harrogate A59 scheme, 
38% strongly support or support the Oatlands Drive scheme, however 50% strongly 
oppose it and 43% strongly support or support the Victoria Avenue scheme. 

 
4.0 Beech Grove Low Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN)  
 
4.1 The Beech Grove LTN was successfully installed on 15th February and makes a safe 

link to the town centre from Otley road. It should be noted that this is at present a 
temporary arrangement and subject to an ongoing consultation as part of an 
Experimental order process, the deadline of which is the 14th August.  

 
4.2 The LTN includes regulatory signage, bollards, planters and a full refresh of the lining 

along Beech Grove and Lancaster Road. One outstanding issue was an objection 
from the Stray Defence Association to signage being used on the Stray. Due to the 
prompt action of Harrogate Borough Council Officers, this has now been resolved.  

 
4.3 Alongside this scheme a designated ‘Ambulances only’ parking bay will be installed 

on Trinity Road at the junction with Otley Road, thereby making available an 
alternative location to the place currently used by ambulances. 

 
4.4 An LTN prevents non-residential through traffic from entering roads to create quieter 

streets where residents feel safer when walking and cycling. The roads will continue 
to be accessible to residents, their visitors, deliveries, emergency vehicles, refuse 
collections and taxi / private hire vehicles. 

 
5.0 National Productivity Infrastructure Fund- Otley Road Cycle Path and Harlow 

Moor Road Junction Improvement. 
 
5.1 The first phase of delivery for the Otley road cycle route (Harlow Moor Road to 

Arthurs Avenue) alongside the Harlow Moor Road junction works began on 1st March. 
National Power Grid will be undertaking works to move cables at this time. This is a 
significant element of work and will last approximately 11 weeks.  The scheme has 
been dependent on gaining agreed designs and programmes from a number of utility 
companies, which has unfortunately contributed to the delay in progress. Following 
this element of work an additional three utility companies will need to move their 
apparatus, after which the construction work can begin. We anticipate this work to 
begin in early Autumn. The NYCC website will be kept up to date as the project 
progresses.  

 
5.2 The improvements at the junction of Harlow Moor Road with Otley Road will see the 

widening of the junction and the introduction of a left turn lane into Harlow Moor 
Road. This improvement will address the impact of queuing traffic in the short term 
but has also been designed to allow the capacity of future growth identified in 
Harrogate Borough Council’s Local Plan.  

 

Page 28



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 - Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Progress report on active travel schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough/3 

OFFICIAL 

5.3 The second phase will take cyclists from Arthurs Avenue to the town centre, via 
Beech Grove.  Elements of this route involve the use of grass verge that has been 
recognised as designated Stray land. A recent consultation was undertaken by 
Harrogate Borough Council, with 450 responses provided. Harrogate Borough 
Council officers will present the outcome of this consultation to the Secretary of State 
(SoS) for consideration and then, subject to approval from the SoS, on to the Duchy 
of Lancaster for final approval. These necessary governance tasks must be complete 
before work on the second phase of the scheme can commence.  

 
5.4 Scheme designs have been revised following the new government cycling guidance 

contained in Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20 released in the summer 2020. Further 
safety audits are also in progress to assess the revisions made. All plans can be 
found on NYCCs website.  

 
5.5 There will be a third phase of this scheme that continues the route from Harlow Moor 

Road to Cardale Park. This element will be developer funded and discussions are 
ongoing regarding the design and delivery of this section. We will continue to work 
with the developers to ensure the appropriate standards are consistent with the off 
road cycle route delivered by NYCC and in accordance with the cycling guidance 
LTN/20. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 
 
6.1 To note the content of report and the progress being made on active travel schemes 

in Harrogate and Knaresborough. 
 
 
 
Author: Louise Neale  
Network Strategy 
Business and Environmental Services 
North Yorkshire County Council 
DATE: 26 February 2021  

Page 29



    APPENDIX A 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 - Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Progress report on active travel schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough/4 

OFFICIAL 

Emergency Active Travel Fund Measures in Harrogate and 
Knaresborough 

Harrogate 

Albert Street Parking bays suspended 

Commercial 
Street 

Some parking bays suspended 

James Street Parking bays suspended 

Montpellier 
Hill 

Some parking bays suspended 

The Ginnel Road closed between 5pm and 11pm Wednesday to Saturday and 
1pm to 11pm on Sundays. 

Knaresborough 

High Street Barriers in place to widen sections of footpath 

Market Place Road closed on Market Day (6am to 5pm Wednesday) only. 

Castlegate, 
from Brymore 
ice Cream to 
Market Tavern 

Road closed on Market Day (6am to 5pm Wednesday) only. 

 

 

Page 30



 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/1 

OFFICIAL 

 
North Yorkshire County Council 
 
 
 

 
 

North Yorkshire County Council 
Harrogate and Knaresborough Constituency Committee – 18 March 2021 

Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund Update 
 
1.0 
 
1.1 

Purpose of the Report 

The purpose of the report is to provide members with an update on the 
Transforming Cities Fund proposals for Harrogate. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 £1.28bn (capital funding) was made available to city regions to bid for 

schemes to be delivered by 31 March 2023 through the Department for 
Transport’s (DfT) Transforming Cities Fund (TCF). Leeds City Region has 
been successful in securing £317m of funding. 

 
2.2 The aim of TCF is to ‘drive up productivity through improved connections 

between urban centres and suburbs’ with a focus on investment ‘in 
infrastructure to improve public and sustainable transport connectivity’. 

 
2.3 As part of the successful Leeds City Region bid, North Yorkshire County 

Council is leading on delivery of a £31m programme with our partners at 
Skipton and Craven District Councils and Harrogate Borough Council, under a 
funding agreement with the West Yorkshire Combined Authority. 

 
2.4 Harrogate comprises a £7.9m scheme focussed on sustainable travel and 

public realm improvements around the Rail and Bus Station Gateway. The 
project area is shown in Appendix 1. 

 
3.0 Scheme Components 
 
3.1 The following represent the key elements of the Harrogate scheme: 

 Reallocation of road space on Station Parade – 1 lane and 2 Lane 
options & northern end made one way southbound 

 Improvements to eastern section of James Street that will provide a 
better retail environment to help support the town centre economy 

 Public realm transformation of Station Square 
 Improved public realm to the north of Victoria Multi-storey Car Park 
 Provision of cycle lanes on East Parade 

 
 
 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/2 

OFFICIAL 

3.2 For Station Parade two options are being presented for public consultation. 
The first option is the reduction of Station Parade to one lane with surrounding 
junction improvements to facilitate the introduction of segregated cycle lanes 
along the whole length. The second option is the retention of Station Parade 
as two lane, which removes the possibility of cycle lanes along the whole 
length of the street and instead proposes the introduction of an increased 
length of cycle lane on East Parade. 

 
3.3 The James Street component is included with a view that it will replace the 

temporary COVID 19 measures which are currently in place. Three options 
are being proposed for the length of the street between Princes Street and 
Station Parade as part of the public consultation: 

 
Option 1 Some on-street parking will be removed to create more space for 

pedestrians. Motor vehicle access at all times is retained. 
Pedestrian improvements including resurfacing with natural stone 
and new trees and rain gardens.  

Option 2 Motor vehicle access will be controlled to this end of the street by 
rising bollards and signage. This allows this section of James 
Street to become a pedestrianised street at agreed times of day. As 
for Option 1, some on street parking will be removed to provide 
more space for pedestrians. Pedestrian improvements including 
resurfacing with natural stone and new trees and rain gardens. 

Option 3 Motor vehicle access to this end of the street will be prohibited 
using bollards and signage. This allows this section of James 
Street to become a fully pedestrianised street. Traffic will need to 
use alternative routes and vehicles will need to park in an off-street 
car park or on other streets. Pedestrian improvements including 
resurfacing with natural stone and new trees and rain gardens. 

 
3.4 It is proposed that Station Square will be renovated with the creation of 

flexible events and art space, introduction of water jet fountains and a 
reflection pool and new planting and trees alongside upgrade public realm at 
One Arch. 

 
3.5 Visualisations for how the areas could look are included at Appendix 2. 
 
4.0 Progress 
 
4.1 Delivery of the schemes is progressing in accordance with the West Yorkshire 

Combined Authority assurance framework.  Working with our partner 
consultant WSP, feasibility designs have been produced to allow public 
consultation and the submission of an Outline Business Case to WYCA in 
March.  Approval of the Outline Business Case unlocks draw down of funding 
to complete design work and obtain final tender prices for the work. 

 
4.2 Public consultation on the scheme is currently live and runs until 24th March 

2021.  The consultation exercise is being run online using the WYCA 
Yourvoice Portal. 

 

Page 32



 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/3 

OFFICIAL 

4.3   A number of online events are being run using Microsoft Teams Broadcast in 
support of the consultation, including events for local businesses and two 
open public sessions. 

 
5.0 Next Steps 
 
5.1 Following the closure of the consultation window all feedback will be analysed 

and preliminary design commenced on the preferred options.   
 
5.2 Ongoing stakeholder engagement will take place through spring and summer 

2021 to allow finalisation of designs and commencement of on-site delivery in 
spring 2022. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 
 
6.1 It is recommended that Members note this report and the progress that is 

being made. 
 
 
Author:  Aidan Rayner 
Highways & Transportation 
Business and Environmental Services 
North Yorkshire County Council 
01 March 2021

Page 33



APPENDIX 1 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/4 

OFFICIAL 

 

 
 
Harrogate project area 
 

Page 34



APPENDIX 2 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/5 

OFFICIAL 

Station Parade & Station Square Visualisation 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



APPENDIX 2 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/6 

OFFICIAL 

James Street Visualisations 
Options 1 & 2 

 
Option 3 

 
 
 
 

Page 36



APPENDIX 2 

NYCC – 18 Mach 2021- Harrogate & Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Transforming Cities Fund Update/7 

OFFICIAL 

One Arch Visualisation 
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 – Harrogate and Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC /1 

OFFICIAL

 
North Yorkshire County Council 
 
 

North Yorkshire County Council 
Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC – 18 March 2021 

Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC 
 
1.0 Purpose of the report 
 
1.1 To provide an update on the Harrogate York railway project, A59 Kex Gill and 

Junction 47 major schemes.  
 

 
2.0 Update 
 

Harrogate York Railway Project 
2.1  The Harrogate Rail Line scheme provides extra capacity and train frequency on the 

line between Harrogate and York through infrastructure upgrades. These 
infrastructure upgrades were completed in December 2020.  

 
2.2  The project is an investment of £9.8million and has been funded by North Yorkshire 

County Council and the York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership, with 
Network Rail carrying out the work. 

 
2.3  Work on the line included upgrading the signalling system. The line used token 

signalling, a system where a train driver must physically pass an object, known as a 
token, to a signaller before the train can move forward. This project has modernised 
the signalling system and removed this process. 

 
2.4 Changes were also made to the track layout at Cattal railway station meaning trains 

can travel through the area at 40mph, up from the current speed of 20mph, enabling 
two trains to arrive in the station at the same time. A reduction to the speed limit on 
the highway, on the approach to the level crossing, is required from 60mph to 40mph 
to maintain safety once more trains begin running on the route and because of the 
manual operation of the gates at Cattal. North Yorkshire County Council is pursuing 
this Traffic Regulation Order and is delivering improved signage in the area. Work to 
install new safety measures at other level crossings on the route will also take place.  

 
2.5 Finally, in order to deliver the additional train services Northern Rail needs to obtain 

access rights from the Office for Road and Rail (ORR). London North Eastern 
Railway (LNER) lodged an objection to the application in April 2020, the objection 
stated LNER were concerned with timetable capacity for their planned additional 
services, commencing in December 2021. Additionally they wanted to understand the 
impact of the additional services on the Harrogate Line might have on their overall 
performance. After a period of negotiation, in November 2020, LNER removed their 
objection and Northern were able to resubmit their application for the uplift in services 
to commence in December 2021.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 – Harrogate and Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC /2 

OFFICIAL

 A59 Kex Gill 
2.6 The Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee held on 12 and 13 January 2021. 

Resolved – That the application for the A59 Kex Gill scheme be approved subject to 
the following:-   
(i) The Secretary of State determining whether to call-in the application for 
consideration;  
(ii) The successful completion of a legal agreement under Section 111 Local 
Government Act 1972, as detailed in the report; and  
(iii) Compliance with the conditions as detailed in the report. 

 
2.7 In a letter dated 27 January 2021 the Secretary of State confirmed to not call-in the 

planning application for his determination. 
 
2.8 In a letter dated 1 February 2021, the Department for Transport (DfT) confirmed an 

offer of funding up to £56.1m towards the estimated total scheme cost of £61.6m and 
programme entry for the scheme within the Large Local Majors programme, with the 
remainder of the funding coming from the County Council in the form of a local 
contribution. This represents a significant step forward for this important 
infrastructure project and allows the County Council to complete the negotiation of all 
the remaining legal and procurement processes (but not enter into final contractual or 
other legal commitments) following which a request for Full Approval from the DfT will 
be made.  

 
2.9 A legal agreement has been produced for the Section 111 agreement relating to off-

site landscape works connected to the construction of A59 Kex Gill scheme and 
following the recent letter from DfT work now continues at pace to progress on the 
Statutory Orders and the procurement for the A59 Kex Gill scheme. 

 
2.11 The aim remains to progress the A59 Kex Gill scheme without the requirement of a 

Public Inquiry (PI). The outline programme without a PI indicates that construction 
could start by autumn 2021 and if a PI is required, this will delay the start of 
construction by approximately 15 months to winter 2022/23. 

 
 Junction 47 
2.12 The £7.7m project is financed by contributions from York and North Yorkshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership, the County Council, Highways England and developer 
Forward Investment LLP. 

 
2.13 Improvement works at J47 include carriageway widening to increase capacity, re-

surfacing and the installation of traffic signals on the roundabout and on the 
A59/A168 junction. This will improve the flow of traffic, addressing the issue of 
vehicles queuing down the slip road onto the A1. Other works include drainage, utility 
diversions, minor structural upgrades, street furniture installation and soft 
landscaping. 

 
2.14 The A59/A168 link road closed to traffic on the 17th February 2021. The closure 

could be in place for up to 16 weeks, but every effort will be made to minimise the 
duration of the work. Other construction works continue on the A59 and on the 
roundabout including the A1(M) slip roads. 

 
2.15 The contractor continues to carrying out the works in full compliance with the Covid-

19 social distancing requirements on site. Although the recent weather has caused 
disruption to the works, it is on programme to be complete in autumn 2021. 
 

Page 40



 

NYCC – 18 March 2021 – Harrogate and Knaresborough Constituency Committee 
Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC /3 

OFFICIAL

3.0 Recommendations 
 

3.1 It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted. 
 

 
 
Keisha Moore/Mark Hugill 
Highways and Transportation 
Business and Environmental Services 
North Yorkshire County Council 
25 February 2021 
  

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
 

North Yorkshire County Council 
Harrogate and Knaresborough Area Constituency Committee 

18 March 2021 
Committee Work Programme  

 

Purpose of Report 
To ask Members to consider, amend and add to the Committee’s work programme. 
 

 
Work Programme 
The Committee’s work programme is at Appendix 1.   
 
Remit of the Committee 
The Area Constituency Committees: 
 

 Act as a forum for Members to bring forward issues affecting their local Electoral 

Divisions 

 Hear and respond to questions and statements from members of the public relating to 

anything affecting the community within the constituency area 

 Agree a Work Programme which lists items of business which the Committee wishes to 

consider at future meetings 

 Undertake meaningful scrutiny of local health issues within their constituency area, 

complementing the strategic work undertaken by the Scrutiny of Health Committee 

 Undertake meaningful scrutiny of local transport issues within their constituency area, 

complementing the strategic work undertaken by Transport, Economy and Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 Act as consultees in major decisions that affect their constituency area (including 

responding to consultations) 

 Make recommendations on the application of Innovation funding (supported by the 

Stronger Communities Team) 

 Develop a working relationship with the local MP, sharing updates and information on 

relevant local issues being addressed by the committee. 

 

Work Programme Items 

The intention is for the Committee to develop a work programme that: is owned by the 
Committee; has items on it that are important locally but relevant at a strategic, county 
level; evolves over time and is not static. 
 
The Committee Chairman, Vice-Chairman and the Democratic Services Officer will keep 
the work programme up to date and determine which items need to be considered at a 
public committee meeting and which could be picked up elsewhere.   
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 13



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Alternative ways of dealing with issues that come to the Committee could include:  
 

 Referral to an officer at the County Council and/or District Council for a response; 

 Referral to the Democratic Services Officer to conduct further research to ascertain 
whether it was appropriate for the committee to review; 

 Referral to County Council and/or District Council Overview and Scrutiny; 

 Referral to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to consider, outside of a formal 
committee meeting; 

 Referral to the appropriate Executive Member to consider. 
 
The County Council’s Forward Plan 
The County Council publishes a Forward Plan which gives 28 days’ notice of key decisions 
due to be taken.  The Forward Plan is published at least once a month and includes:- a 
description of each matter; details of the decision to be made; consultees; and contact 
details.  Below is a link to the relevant page on the County Council’s website, from which 
the Forward Plan can be viewed.  This is provided in case Committee Members wish to 
refer to the Forward Plan in identifying possible issues for inclusion in this Committee’s 
work programme:- 
 
https://democracy.northyorks.gov.uk/ 
 
 

Recommendation 
Members are asked to consider, amend and add to the Committee’s work programme. 

 

 
 
 
Ruth Gladstone, Principal Democratic Services Officer 
North Yorkshire County Council 
Tel: (01609) 532555  
Email: ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk 

Page 44

https://democracy.northyorks.gov.uk/
mailto:ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Harrogate and Knaresborough Area Constituency Committee Work Programme as at 10 March 2021 
 

 

Informal meetings of the Committee were held on the follow dates during the Covid-19 pandemic 
when formal meetings of the Council for most committees were postponed 

2 April, 23 April, 14 May, 4 June, 24 June, 23 July, 20 August, 24 September and 16 October 2020 
 

 

Thursday 12 November 2020, 9.30am, Live broadcast remote meeting 
Subject Description 

Schools, Educational Achievement and 
Finance 

To consider an annual report about schools, educational achievement and finance, to include 
attainment data, the landscape regarding organisational status/school places, school finances, 
and the position in relation to exclusions  

North Yorkshire Healthy Child 
Programme  

To comment on a consultation regarding Service changes 
 

Friday 8 January 2021, 9.30am, Live broadcast remote meeting 
Annual Council Budget Review To review the annual Council budget and make recommendations to the Executive Member 

Highway Transport Improvement 
Programme 

To hear about the outcomes of the Programme study and the recommended next steps in the 
Programme development work streams 

Thursday 18 March 2021, 10.00am, Live broadcast remote meeting 
Update from The Rt Hon Andrew Jones 
MP 

To receive an update from the Rt Hon Andrew Jones MP 

Covid-19 Pandemic in North Yorkshire - 
Update 

To receive an update from County Councillor Michael Harrison (Executive Member for Adult 
Services and Health Integration and Chair of North Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Board) 

Stronger Communities – Covid-19 Social 
Isolation and Approach to Community 
Efforts 

To consider an annual report about Stronger Communities initiatives 

Active Travel Schemes in Harrogate and 
Knaresborough – Progress Report 

To receive updates on progress on the Active Travel Fund schemes, Beech Grove Low Traffic 
Neighbourhood and Otley Road cycle scheme 

Forthcoming Public Consultation on 
Detailed Design for a Cycle Facility on 
Oatlands Drive, Harrogate 

To receive information about this forthcoming Public Consultation 

APPENDIX 1

P
age 45



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund 
Update 

To receive an update on the Transforming Cities Fund proposals for Harrogate 

Significant Investment Schemes by 
NYCC 

To receive updates on the Harrogate York railway project, A59 Kex Gill and Junction 47 major 
schemes 

Thursday 10 June 2021, 10.00am, Live broadcast remote meeting 
No business identified for this meeting as 
at 10 March 2021 

 

Thursday 16 September 2021, 10.00am, Live broadcast remote meeting 

No business identified for this meeting as 
at 10 March 2021 

 

Thursday 25 November 2021, 10.00am, Live broadcast remote meeting 

Schools, Educational Achievement and 
Finance 
 

To consider an annual report about schools, educational achievement and finance, to include 
attainment data, the landscape regarding organisational status/school places, school finances, 
and the position in relation to exclusions 

Possible additional meeting in early January 2022, Live broadcast remote meeting 

Annual Council Budget Review Possible additional meeting to review the annual Council budget and make recommendations to 
the Executive Member 

Thursday 17 March 2022, 10.00am, Live broadcast remote meeting 

Stronger Communities To consider an annual report about Stronger Communities initiatives 

 
 
Author:  Ruth Gladstone, Democratic Services, Tel: 01609 532555, Email: ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk  

Background documents:  None 

P
age 46

mailto:ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 8 January 2021
	2021-01-08 Harrogate and Knaresborough ACC Minutes
	Appendix to Minutes of 2021-01-08

	7 Stronger Communities: COVID19 Social Isolation and Approach to Community Efforts
	9 Active Travel Schemes in Harrogate and Knaresborough - Progress Report
	11 Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund Update
	12 Significant Investment Schemes by NYCC
	13 Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme - A covering report
	Work Programme - Appendix 1




